
Safety and Licensing Committee

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appletonwi.gov

Council Chambers, 6th Floor6:00 PMWednesday, June 4, 2025

Special Meeting

1. Call meeting to order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll call of membership

4. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

25-0598 Safety & Licensing Committee Minutes from 5/28/25

 

S&L Minutes 5.28.25.pdfAttachments:

5. Public Hearing/Appearances

6. Action Items

25-0599 Non-renewal of the Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage and “Class B” Liquor 

License for Tandem Wine & Beer, LLC located at 101 W Edison Street, Suite 

100, Karter Thompson, Agent.

 

Tandem Wine & Beer Renewal 2025 Redacted.pdf

APD Memo - Tandem - alcohol license denial (renewal).pdf

Tandem Non-Renewal Hearing Notice 2025.pdf

Tandem Wine and Beer Denial Memo.pdf

Wisconsin DOT Certified CL & Driving Record_Redacted.pdf

Certified Judgment of Conviction-Fond du Lac County 24CT651_Redacted.pdf

Attachments:

25-0600 The Safety and Licensing Committee may go into closed session pursuant 

to State Statute §19.85(1)(a) for the purpose of deliberating the 

non-renewal of an alcohol license and then may reconvene into open 

session.

7. Information Items

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 5/30/2025

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25946
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c4569557-6311-4bd7-9060-91fe1f4cfaf6.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25947
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c06841c7-d196-4cc5-837a-998c4159b256.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2b7aa9d0-aa5f-47e0-958e-5412dffafecc.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1c27f16d-64ef-4821-ba3e-ff8e06b8a89b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5683a936-2188-4738-9d36-17f410e62c0f.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=461c5b3a-91b3-4059-95f4-c83c2c19ac74.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=01e62899-98c2-4af7-9c3c-1ace1ff9ca4c.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25948


June 4, 2025Safety and Licensing Committee Meeting Agenda - Final

8. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this 

meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 5/30/2025



100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appletonwi.gov

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Safety and Licensing Committee

5:30 PM Council Chambers, 6th FloorWednesday, May 28, 2025

Call meeting to order1.

The meeting was called to order by Chair Croatt at 5:30 p.m.

Pledge of Allegiance2.

Roll call of membership3.

Croatt, Van Zeeland and FentonPresent: 3 - 

Hartzheim and FirkusExcused: 2 - 

Approval of minutes from previous meeting4.

25-0575 Safety & Licensing Committee Minutes from 5/14/25

 

S&L Minutes 5.14.25.pdfAttachments:

Fenton moved, seconded by Van Zeeland, that the Minutes be approved. Roll 

call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Croatt, Van Zeeland and Fenton3 - 

Excused: Hartzheim and Firkus2 - 

Public Hearing/Appearances5.

25-0566 Alcohol License Demerit Point Violation Appearance - Mr. Frogs on the 

Ave

 

Mr.Frogs Demerit Pt Letter (2nd).pdfAttachments:

No one appeared for this item

Action Items6.

Page 1City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25923
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=63dd808e-8ee9-42bc-9621-a6e6a0e573ed.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25914
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=70f29034-5fdf-4069-9e02-13a1a50161e3.pdf


May 28, 2025Safety and Licensing Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

25-0572 WI United Football Club - Summer Shootout Special Event Application  

WI UFC -Summer Shootout- Kickin' for a Cure -Application_.pdf

Memo - WI United Football Summer Shootout Event.pdf

Hilton Letter of Support for Summer Shootout Event.pdf

Attachments:

Ann Bona and Eric Gebhart addressed the committee

Fenton moved, seconded by Van Zeeland, that the appeal and the Special 

Event License application be recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion 

carried by the following vote:

Aye: Croatt, Van Zeeland and Fenton3 - 

Absent: Hartzheim and Firkus2 - 

Balance of the action items on the agenda.

Fenton moved, Van Zeeland seconded, to approve the balance of the agenda 

excluding Item 25-0567.  The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Croatt, Van Zeeland and Fenton3 - 

Excused: Hartzheim and Firkus2 - 

25-0573 McFleshman’s Full-Service Retail Outlet Request for alcohol sales/service at 

the ADI Farmer’s Market July 12, 19 & 26 (2025)  

McFleshmans AB-105  Farmers Market 2025.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was recommended for approval

25-0579 Stone Arch Full-Service Retail Outlet Request for alcohol sales/service at the 

July 3rd Independence Day celebration in Memorial Park

Stone Arch AB-105 July 3rd Fireworks_Redacted.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was recommended for approval.

25-0565 Class "B" Beer and Reserve "Class B" Liquor License application for 

Vault 202 Brewery and Taphouse LLC d/b/a Vault 202 Brewery and 

Taproom, Frederick Stuedemann, Agent, located at 202 W College Ave, 

contingent upon approval from the Health and Inspections departments

Vault 202 Brewery & Taproom LLC.Alcohol.Class B_Beer Reserve 

Liquor.2.26.25.REDACTED.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was recommended for approval.

Page 2City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25920
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=da5c427f-dafb-4db1-bbfb-f1bcbc8ced35.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9dc9e789-01f5-4da4-9b71-00b1b2be0d8e.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b7580289-3b1c-45fc-9fbf-409e135e668c.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25921
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=73375e3c-1830-4926-bd2c-2a3b8129ff7b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25927
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d568b11c-3a40-4f75-a207-078278c7bf76.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25913
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b50cd378-f5f5-485c-8d51-3fa75c9c0273.pdf


May 28, 2025Safety and Licensing Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

25-0568 2025-2026 Late Cigarette, Tobacco, and Electronic Vaping Device 

License renewal applications 

 

2025 LATE CTV RENEWALS.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was recommended for approval.

25-0569 Cigarette, Tobacco, and Electronic Vaping Device License application 

for Esales Inc d/b/a The Flower Pot, Tye Hartwell, Agent, located at 2310 

W College Ave

 

Flower Pot.Esales Inc.CTV.5.16.25REDACTED.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was recommended for approval.

25-0570 Pet Store License renewal application for HSA Corporation d/b/a Pet 

Supplies Plus, Angela DeHaan, Applicant, located at 702 W Northland 

Ave, contingent upon approval from the Inspections department 

 

Pet Supplies Plus.HSA Corporation.PK.5.14.25.REDACTED.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was recommended for approval.

25-0571 Pet Store License renewal application for Just Pets LLC d/b/a Just Pets, 

Craig Weborg, Applicant, located at 2009 N Richmond St

 

Just Pets.PK.5.16.25.REDACTED.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was recommended for approval.

25-0577 Salvage Dealer's License renewal application for Mr C's Motorcycles 

LLC d/b/a Mr C Cycle, Janet Ristau, Applicant, located at 724 S 

Outagamie St, contingent upon approval from the Inspections department

 

Mr C's Motorcycles.REDACTED.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was recommended for approval.

Page 3City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25916
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2e744e15-fe4e-4474-87a8-f337d4631b3b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25917
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=02cbab4a-69a8-4d9c-8fe6-79e432231190.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25918
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c23fe6ad-36ab-4912-92be-5d781e02f08f.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25919
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=229bdb15-8238-41da-b8fa-0db879c8a128.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25925
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ed698e09-7de8-4ae1-b1d3-69b6361149ce.pdf


May 28, 2025Safety and Licensing Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

25-0335 Temporary Class "B" Beer License application for Appleton Downtown 

Inc, Jennifer Stephany, Person in Charge, located at 333 W. College Ave, 

on May 16, 2025 from 5:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. on College Avenue, from 

Superior Street to Durkee Street, for Light the Night Market special event, 

RESCHEDULED TO FRIDAY, MAY 30, 2025

Appleton Downtown Inc.Alcohol.Temp B_Beer.Light the Night 

Market.5.16.25.REDACTED.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was recommended for approval.

25-0567 2025-2026 Late Alcohol License renewal applications, contingent upon 

approval from all departments by 12:00 p.m. on June 30, 2025

 

2025 Late Alcohol License Renewals.pdfAttachments:

Fenton moved, seconded by Van Zeeland, that the Alcohol License Renewal 

applications be recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Croatt, Van Zeeland and Fenton3 - 

Excused: Hartzheim and Firkus2 - 

Information Items7.

25-0574 AASD Truancy Initiatives Update 

 

25-0557 Special Events

- Appleton Downtown Inc., Heid Music Summer Concert Series, Jones 

Park, Thursdays June 5th 2025 - August 28th 2025

- Appleton Parade Committee, City of Appleton Flag Day Parade, 

Approved Route, June 16th 2025

 

25-0576 Director's Report

1. City Clerk

2. Fire Chief

3. Police Chief

 

Adjournment8.

Van Zeeland moved, seconded by Fenton, that the meeting be adjourned at 

5:52 p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Croatt, Van Zeeland and Fenton3 - 

Page 4City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25684
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=25e16eb9-599e-4a6b-bfbe-2b12cf3a6e56.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25915
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6900ec95-fa80-4aa1-a675-3023f9ea9360.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25922
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25905
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25924


May 28, 2025Safety and Licensing Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

Excused: Hartzheim and Firkus2 - 

Page 5City of Appleton







 
 

 

 

TO:  Safety and Licensing Committee  

  Common Council  

FROM: Lt. Ben Goodin 

DATE: 05/23/2025 

RE: Police Department’s Recommendation for Denial of Tandem Wine Bar’s Business 

Alcohol License Renewal Application 

 

 

Committee Members:  

The police department is requesting that the Safety and Licensing Committee recommend to the 

Common Council to deny Tandem Wine Bar’s application for a business alcohol license renewal 

which is located at 101 W. Edison Ave. Suite 100 Appleton, WI.  This recommendation is made 

based upon the fact that the owner of the LLC, George Koenig, is ineligible for licensure based 

upon arrest and / or conviction record under §125.04(5)(a)1., and the fact that he has been a 

habitual law offender under §125.04(5).  Because he is a member of the LLC seeking the license, 

the LLC is also ineligible for licensure pursuant to §125.04(5)(b).     

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. §111.335(2)(b) and (3)(a), it is not employment discrimination for a 

licensing agency to deny an applicant based on an arrest or conviction record where the 

circumstances of the conviction substantially relate to the circumstances of the particular 

licensed activity. 

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. §125.04(5)(a)1., no license or permit related to alcohol beverages may be 

issued to an individual with an arrest or conviction record where the circumstances of the 

record(s) substantially relate to the circumstances of the particular licensed activity. 

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. §125.04(5)(b), no license or permit related to alcohol beverages may be 

issued to a “habitual law offender” where the circumstances of the habitual law offenses 

substantially relate to the circumstances of the particular licensed activity. 

Also pursuant to Wis. Stat. §111.335(4)(c), if the licensing agency refuses to license an 

individual based upon arrest or conviction record, the applicant is allowed an opportunity to  



 
 

show “evidence of rehabilitation and fitness to engage in the licensed activity,” unless the 

conviction(s) are for “exempt offenses.”  Wis. Stat. §111.335(4)(d) provides the following 

options:  

that the applicant may produce to conclusively demonstrate their rehabilitation and fitness from a 

given conviction: 

A copy of the local, state, or federal release document; and either  

(1) a copy of the relevant department of corrections document showing completion of 

probation, extended supervision, or parole; or  

(2) other evidence that at least one year has elapsed since release from any local, state, or 

federal correctional institution without subsequent conviction of a crime along with 

evidence showing compliance with all terms and conditions of probation, extended 

supervision, or parole. 

Additionally, the licensing agency must consider any of the following evidence if presented by 

the individual, though none are required to be accepted as conclusive proof of rehabilitation: 

(1) Evidence of the nature and seriousness of any offense of which he or she was 

convicted. 

(2) Evidence of all circumstances relative to the offense, including mitigating 

circumstances or social conditions surrounding the commission of the offense. 

(3) The age of the individual at the time the offense was committed. 

(4) The length of time that has elapsed since the offense was committed. 

(5) Letters of reference by persons who have been in contact with the individual since the 

applicant’s release from any local, state, or federal correctional institution. 

(6) All other relevant evidence of rehabilitation and present fitness presented. 

 

STATEMENT ON SUBSTANTIAL RELATIONSHIP 

As part of any denial of licensing, the police department must determine if crimes are 

substantially related to the sale of alcohol.  Mr. Koenig is a habitual law offender based on the 

following convictions which are substantially related to the licensed activity: 

Operating While Intoxicated (1st) contrary to Wisconsin Statutes §346.63(1)(a), in Outagamie 

County case # 2017TR003458.  This is a civil forfeiture. 

Operating While Intoxicated (2nd) contrary to Wisconsin Statutes §346.63(1)(a), in Winnebago 

County case # 2018CT000941.  This is a misdemeanor criminal offense. 



 
 

Operating with a Prohibited Alcohol Concentration (3rd) contrary to Wisconsin Statutes 

§346.63(1)(b), in Fond du Lac County case # 2024CT000651.  This is a misdemeanor criminal 

offense. 

Impaired driving is a serious offense and a major problem not only in Wisconsin but across the 

entire country.  Mr. Koenig has not shown the ability to make sound decisions by understanding 

when he is under the influence of alcohol and is unsafe to operate a motor vehicle.  A person 

serving alcohol to members of the public must be aware of when a patron has had enough to 

drink and should not be served any longer.   

The service of alcohol includes coming into contact with individuals in a very vulnerable state.  

These circumstances substantially relate to the circumstances of the above-described offenses. 

Engaging in the licensed activity of the retail sale of alcohol also provides the direct opportunity 

for the same or similar unlawful behavior to be repeated. 

Wis. Stat. §125.04(5)(c) states:  “Corporations and limited liability companies. No license or 

permit may be issued to any corporation or limited liability company unless that entity meets the 

qualifications under pars. (a) 1. and 4. and (b), unless the agent of the entity appointed under 

sub. (6) and the officers and directors, or members or managers, of the entity meet the 

qualifications of pars. (a) 1. and 3. and (b) and unless the agent of the entity appointed under 

sub. (6) meets the qualifications under par. (a) 2. and 5. The requirement that the entity meet the 

qualifications under pars. (a) 1. and (b) does not apply if the entity has terminated its relationship 

with all of the individuals whose actions directly contributed to the conviction.” 

Mr. Koenig’s repeated OWI convictions qualify him as a habitual law offender and additionally 

leave him with a conviction and / or arrest record that leave him ineligible for licensure.  Since 

Mr. Koenig is still a member of the LLC that is wishing to renew its business liquor license, the 

Appleton Police Department is recommending the business’s renewal application be denied.   

 

Very Respectfully, 

Lt. Ben Goodin 

Appleton Police Department     

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/125.04(5)(a)1.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/125.04(5)(a)4.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/125.04(5)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/125.04(6)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/125.04(5)(a)1.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/125.04(5)(a)3.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/125.04(5)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/125.04(6)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/125.04(5)(a)2.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/125.04(5)(a)5.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/125.04(5)(a)1.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/125.04(5)(b)


 
 

OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

100 N Appleton Street 
Appleton, WI 54911  

p: 920.832.6443 
f: 920.832.5823 

www.appletonwi.gov 

 
 

 
May 28, 2025 
 
Karter Thompson - Agent 
419 S Church Street 
Neenah, WI 54956 
 

 
Notice of Non-renewal Hearing for the Alcohol License for Tandem Wine & Beer, LLC 
 
Ms. Thompson, 
 
The purpose of this letter is to inform you of the status of your renewal alcohol license 
application for Tandem, located at 101 W Edison Ave Ste 100.  The Appleton Police 
Department is recommending the non-renewal of your alcohol license based upon the arrest or 
conviction record of the owner of Tandem Wine & Beer, LLC, George Koenig.  A copy of the 
letter recommending denial of the license is enclosed for your reference. 
 
A hearing for the non-renewal of your alcohol license has been scheduled for 
Wednesday, June 4th, 2025, before the Safety & Licensing Committee.  The hearing will 
take place at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers – 6th floor at City Hall, 100 N Appleton 
St., Appleton, WI 54911. 
 
Pursuant to Wis. Stat. §111.335(4)(c), Mr. Koenig is allowed the opportunity to show “evidence 
of rehabilitation and fitness to engage in the licensed activity” which may be brought to the 
hearing on June 4th and presented to the Committee.  Please bring any and all materials you 
wish for the Safety & Licensing Committee and the Common Council to review to the meeting 
of the Safety & Licensing Committee at the time and place noted above.  
 
The Safety & Licensing Committee will make a recommendation on the renewal alcohol 
license application to the Common Council, who will make a final decision on the renewal 
application at 7:00 p.m., June 4th, following the Safety & Licensing Committee meeting.  
 
If you have any questions related to this matter, please contact me at 920-832-6443. 
 
Respectfully, 

 
 
Kami Lynch, City Clerk      
 
Encl: APD Lt. Goodin Memo - Tandem 



CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI 54911  
p: 920.832.6423 
f: 920.832.5962 

www.appletonwi.gov 

 

 
TO:  Safety and Licensing Committee, Common Council  
 
From:  ACA Zak Buruin 
 
Date:  May 29, 2025 
 
RE: Non-renewal of the Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage and “Class B” Liquor 

License for Tandem Wine & Beer, LLC located at 101 W Edison Street, Suite 100, 
Karter Thompson, Agent.  

 
 
Tandem Wine & Beer LLC (hereafter referred to as “Tandem”) has applied for renewal of Class 
“B” and “Class B” retail alcohol licenses.  Staff has recommended that the licenses not be 
renewed.  Having been notified of the intent to not renew the sought licenses, “Tandem” now 
appeals the staff recommendation of denial and the denial of that application.  Below is a 
summary of the relevant Chapter 125 eligibility requirements and an analysis of their application 
in this case.  
 

Summary 
 
State statute prohibits the issuance of a retail alcohol license to a LLC unless all of the officers, 
directors, members, and managers meet the eligibility criteria related to criminal and unlawful 
behavior.  Mr. George Koenig remains a member of the limited liability company (LLC) applying 
for license renewal, as he is the owner.  Mr. Koenig has thrice been convicted of intoxicated 
driving offenses in Wisconsin, with the most recent conviction date occurring on March 10, 2025.   
As intoxicated driving offenses are substantially related to the activity for which a license is 
(re)sought, Mr. Koenig’s prohibited arrest record, conviction record, and history of habitual law 
violation leaves him, and his LLC ineligible to renew the retail alcohol licenses applied for.  This 
ineligibility is subject to the opportunity to demonstrate evidence of rehabilitation.  
  

§125.04(5) Licensing Requirements 
 
According to §125.04(5)(a)1, in order to be granted a license or permit under Wisconsin Statutes 
Chapter 125, the applicant may not have an arrest or conviction record.  This prohibition is 
subject to the requirements of various statutes prohibiting certain types of employment 
discrimination, which will be discussed below.  These statutes are §111.321, §111.322, §111.335 
and §125.12 (1) (b). 



 
§125.04(5)(b) states that “No license or permit related to alcohol beverages may, subject to 
§111.321, 111.322 and 111.335, be issued under this chapter to any person who has habitually 
been a law offender or has been convicted of a felony unless the person has been duly pardoned.” 
 
§125.04(5)(c) prohibits any license or permit may be issued to any corporation or limited liability 
company unless that company’s agent, and officers and directors, or members or managers meet 
the qualifications set forth in §125.04(5)(b).   
 
In summary, §125.04(5) prohibits the issuance of alcohol related licenses under Chapter 125 to 
anybody with an arrest or conviction record, anybody with an unpardoned felony conviction, or 
anybody “who has habitually been a law offender,” regardless of whether any arrests or 
convictions exist (see State ex rel. Smith v. City of Oak Creek, 139 Wis. 2d 788, 407 N.W.2d 901 
(1987)), unless failing to grant that license would constitute prohibited discrimination.  This 
prohibition extends to the agents, officers, directors, members, and managers of corporations 
and limited liability companies.   
 

Prohibited Discrimination 
 

§111.321 – Prohibited Bases of Discrimination 
 
Arrest or conviction (among other bases not relevant to consideration here) are not generally 
permitted to be used as a basis for employment discrimination by a licensing agency. 
 

§111.335 – Arrest or Conviction Record; Exceptions and Special Cases 
 
§111.335(3)(a)1 states that it is not employment discrimination because of a conviction record 
to refuse to license an individual where that person has been convicted of “any felony, 
misdemeanor, or other offense the circumstances of which substantially related to the 
circumstances of the particular job or licensed activity.”  In evaluating the existence of a 
substantial relationship, it is the circumstances that provide the opportunity for criminal 
behavior, the reaction to responsibility, or the character traits of the applicant that are the proper 
considerations.  It is not relevant whether the applicant has the ability to perform the work to an 
employer’s standards.  (See Milwaukee Cnty. v. Lab. & Indus. Rev. Comm'n, 139 Wis. 2d 805, 407 
N.W.2d 908 (1987)). 
 
Each offense must be evaluated under the above criteria for determination of whether or not it 
is substantially related to the activity for which a license is sought.  Any arrest, conviction, or 
other offense which is substantially related to the licensed activity is to be considered in the 
licensing decision. 
 

Consideration of Rehabilitation 
 
§111.335(4)(c)1 requires that if a license is denied based upon §111.335(3)(a)1 (as discussed in 



the preceding section), the licensing agency typically has two further obligations.  It must state 
the reasons for denial in writing, including a statement of how the circumstances of the offense(s) 
relate to the licensed activity.  It must also allow the person to show evidence of rehabilitation.  
According to §111.335(4)(c)1.b, if the individual “shows competent evidence of sufficient 
rehabilitation and fitness to perform the licensed activity under par. (d), the licensing agency may 
not refuse to license the individual or bar or terminate the individual from licensing based on that 
conviction.” (Emphasis added). 
 
The statute specifically notes documentation that can demonstrate rehabilitation “on that 
conviction.”  As such, rehabilitation is to be considered with respect to each offense individually, 
rather than the applicant in totality.  Where denial is based upon §111.335(3)(a)1, and competent 
evidence of sufficient rehabilitation shown, that offense may not be considered as part of a denial 
decision. 
 

Competent Evidence of Sufficient Rehabilitation 
 
For denials based upon §111.335(3)(a)1, competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation may be 
shown.  As indicated above in §111.335(4)(c)1.b, where such evidence is shown, the related 
conviction may not be the basis for a denial of a license. 
 
§111.335(4)(d)1 provides two forms of evidence which are statutorily required to be considered 
“competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation,” and therefore must be accepted by the 
licensing agency as such.  §111.335(4)(d)1.a. allows one to provide certified documentation of 
honorable discharge from the US armed forces following the otherwise disqualifying conviction.  
This documentation is no longer sufficient if there is a criminal conviction following the discharge 
date.2   
 
§111.335(4)(d)1.b, allows the applicant to provide documentation of their release from custody 
and either completion of probation or release from custody and compliance with all terms and 
conditions of release, be it extended supervision, probation, or parole, for at least one year 
(including no subsequent criminal convictions).3   
 
Where neither of the above exists, §111.335(4)(d)2 provides additional documentary evidence 
that may be provided that the licensing agency is bound to consider, but that it is not required to 
accept conclusively as sufficient evidence of rehabilitation.  Evidence which the agency is 
required to consider include:  

 
1 Denials under other provisions may be subject to other requirements. 
2 From a practical standpoint, honorable discharge from the armed forces is not related to any particular offense.  
This section, in conjunction with §111.335(4)(c)1.b. could be interpreted as effectively removing any criminal 
offenses prior to honorable discharge from licensing consideration.  This would be more akin to evaluating the 
rehabilitation of the person rather than specific offenses, which is not what the other related statutes call for.  This 
arguable inconsistency what my prior, more rigid analysis was based upon.     
3 Periods of supervision are attributable to specific offenses, allowing for consideration of individual offenses as 
§111.335(4)(c)1.b contemplates. 



a. evidence of the seriousness of any offense of which he / she was convicted. 
b. evidence of all circumstances relative to the offense including mitigating circumstances 

or social conditions surrounding the offense. 
c. The age of the individual at the time the offense was committed. 
d. The length of time that has elapsed since the offense was committed. 
e. Letters of reference by persons who have been in contact with the individual since the 

applicant’s release from any local, state, or federal correctional institution. 
f. All other relevant evidence of rehabilitation and fitness presented. 

 
Based upon the above, where a denial of a licensed is based upon §111.335(3)(a)1, and there is 
no evidence presented that is statutorily defined as “competent evidence of sufficient 
rehabilitation” for a particular offense, it is up to the licensing agency to determine whether the 
other documentary evidence available constitutes “competent evidence of sufficient 
rehabilitation and fitness to perform the licensed activity.”   
 

Applicability to Tandem Wine & Beer, LLC. 
 
“Tandem’s” most recent application for renewal of retail licenses lists two members of the LLC.  
Karter Thompson is listed as the agent.  This is a relatively recent change, but one with which 
there is no issue.     
 
Mr. Koenig is listed as the owner of the LLC, and is certainly therefore a member of the LLC.  The 
recent change of agent does not shield Mr. Koenig’s legal background from consideration in the 
licensing decision.  He remains a member of the LLC.   
 
Mr. Koenig has thrice been convicted of intoxicated driving offenses.   

• In Outagamie County case 17TR3458, he was convicted of a non-criminal offense of 
Operating While Intoxicated, contrary to Wisconsin Statutes §346.63(1)(a) on July 12, 
2017.  This is evidenced by the certified copy of Mr. Koenig’s driving record.   

• In Winnebago County case 18CT941, he was convicted of a criminal offense of Operating 
While Intoxicated, contrary to Wisconsin Statutes §346.63(1)(a) on January 14, 2019.  This 
is evidenced by the certified copy of Mr. Koenig’s driving record.   

• In Outagamie County case 24CT651, he was convicted of a criminal offense of Operating 
With a Prohibited Alcohol Concentration, contrary to Wisconsin Statutes §346.63(1)(b) on 
March 10, 2025.  This is evidenced by the certified copy of Mr. Koenig’s driving record.   

 
Each of these offenses, alone and particuarly in concert, substantially relate to the licensed 
business of retail distribution of alcohol beverages.  It is inarguable that engaging in the retail 
sale of alcohol beverages provides one with the opportunity to engaged in impaired driving.  
Engaging in such a business provides one with nearly unfettered access to alcohol beverages, and 
access to motor vehicles is nearly ubiquitous regardless of the presence of an alcohol license.  
The opportunity for impaired driving (i.e. criminal) behavior is palpable.  
 
On at least three occasions of which the law is aware, Mr. Koenig reacted to the availability of 



intoxicating substances and a motor vehicle by consuming to the point of excess and following 
that decision with the decision to drive.  It is not clear whether any of these occasions involved 
his licensed establishment, but this is immaterial.  Even assuming none of these incidents 
involved his establishment, they involved the lesser responsibility of merely having personal 
access to alcohol and a vehicle.  The responsibility of commercial access and oversight of 
responsible distribution and consumption of intoxicants is higher.  On three documented 
occasions, Mr. Koenig failed to respond appropriately to even the lower level of responsibility of 
mere personal consumption. 
 
It is important to note that whether Mr. Koenig can perform the work associated with the license 
his LLC seeks is not material.  At issue is the substantial relationship between the unlawful acts 
and the activity for which a license is sought.   
 
Based upon the offenses for which Mr. Koenig has been convicted, his arrest record, conviction 
record, and record of habitual law violation leaves him and his LLC ineligible to renew the sought 
retail alcohol licenses.   
 
The offenses which disqualify Mr. Koenig, and therefore “Tandem” as well, are subject to showing 
of rehabilitation.  Should the applicant show evidence which it deems to be “competent evidence 
of sufficient rehabilitation,” either because they are statutorily obligated to, or because their 
judgement leads them to that conclusion, Mr. Koenig and therefore “Tandem’s” eligibility is 
restored.  In such a case, the license must be renewed.  Absent such a showing, the LLC is 
ineligible, and the license renewal must be denied. 

 
 

Conclusion 
 
Mr. Koenig’s history of intoxicated driving offenses leaves him and his LLC ineligible for licensure 
under Chapter 125 of the Wisconsin statutes.  Unless the Committee / Council receive what it 
determines to be “competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation,” both Mr. Koenig and the LLC 
will remain ineligible for licensure and the Committee / Council may not renew the license 
applied for.` 
 
 
 
















	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_SL Minutes 5.28.25
	0002_1_Tandem Wine Beer Renewal 2025 Redacted
	0002_2_APD Memo - Tandem - alcohol license denial (renewal)
	0002_3_Tandem Non-Renewal Hearing Notice 2025
	0002_4_Tandem Wine and Beer Denial Memo
	0002_5_Wisconsin DOT Certified CL Driving Record_Redacted
	0002_6_Certified Judgment of Conviction-Fond du Lac County 24CT651_Redacted



